
CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE, LOUISIANA 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019 

•p&N 
PostLethwalte & NettervilLe 

AProfsssionalAcxouritlng Corporation 

wwM/.pncpa.ocim 



CONTENTS 

PAGE 

ENDEPENDENT AUDITORS^ REPORT 1-3 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 4-7 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Statement of Net Position 8 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 9 

Statement of Cash Flows 10 

Notes to the Financial Statements 11-31 

REOUIRBD SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 32 

Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 
Liability 33 

Schedule of the District's Contributions to the Retirement Systems 34 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 35 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Schedule of West Feliciana Parish Government Council Members 36 

Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to the Parish President 37 

Schedule of Insurance in Force (Unaudited) 38 

Schedule of Information Required by Rural Development (Unaudited) 39 

OTHER REPORTS 

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit 
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government 
A udiiing Standards 40-41 

Schedule of Findings and Recommendations 42 - 43 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 44 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 



8550 Untied PLaza Blvd , Ste 1001 - Baton Rouge, LA 7QS09 
225-922-4600 Phone - 225-922-4611 Fax - tincp^.'rn'n 

Posllethwaite &NetterviUe ^ P>ofe,s<onatAci:aunm Corporation 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Honorable President and Council 
of the Consolidated Waterworks District No. 13 ofWest Feliciana Parish 

St. Francisville, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Consolidated Waterworks District No. 13 of 
West Feliciana Parish (the District), a component unit of the West Feliciana Parish Government, as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the District's basic fmancial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of fmancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors* Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmenl Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, tlie financial 
position of the District, as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Infoitnation 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis, the Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, the 
Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability for the Retirement Systems, and 
the Schedule of the District's Contributions to the Retirement Systems and the related notes, presented on 
pages 4 through 7, page 32, page 33, and pages 34 through 35, respectively, be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing tlie information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, tlie basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
connprise the District's basic financial statements. The Schedule of West Feliciana Parish Government 
Council Members, the Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to the Parish President, the 
Schedule of Insurance in Force (Unaudited), and the Schedule of Information Required by Rural 
Development (Unaudited) on page 36, page 37, page 38, and 39, respectively, are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The Schedule of West Feliciana Parish Government Council Members and the Schedule of Compensation, 
Benefits, and Other Payments to the Parish President are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic flnsmcial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion. The Schedule of 
West Feliciana Parish Government Council Members and the Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and 
Other Payments to the Parish President are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 

The Schedule of Insurance in Force and the Schedule of Information Required by Rural Development are 
presented for additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. That 
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of tlie basic financial 
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 30, 
2019 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of inteTTjal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Goveniment Auditing Standards in considering the District's interna] control over financial reporting 
and compliance. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
December 30,2019 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 



CQINSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NQ.13 
OF WEST FEUCFANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLF. LOlTtSlANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30. 2019 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis of liie District's fiiiaiicia! perrurmance presents a narrative 
overview and analysis of the District's financial activities for the year ended June 30^ 2019, This 
document focuses on the current activities of each period, resulting changes, and known facts. Please 
read this document in conjunction with the District's financial statements* 

FINANCIAL fflGHLIGHTS 

• Assets and deferred outflows of the District's exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the 
close of the year by $3,814,198 (net position). Of this amount, $1,257,666 (unrestricted net 
position) may be used without restrictions to meet the District's ongoing obligations. 

• The District's net position had a decrease of $39,437 during the year ended June 30,2019, 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The following graphic illustrates the minimum requirements for Consolidated Waterworks District No. 13 
of West Feliciana Parish as established by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 34, 
Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for Stale and Local Governments. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Required supplementary infonnation 
(other than MD&A) 

These financial statements consist of three sections - Management's Discussion and Analysis (this 
section), the basic financial statements (including the notes to the financial statements), and required 
supplementary information. 

Basic Financial Statements 

This report consists of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position which provides infonnation about the activities of the District as a whole and 
present a longer-term view of the District's finances. These statements include all assets and liabilities 
using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private sector 
companies. All of the current period's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when 
cash is received or paid. 



CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE. LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
.RJNE 30.2019 

Basic Financial Statements (continued) 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
report the District's net position and changes in them. You can think of the District's net position, the 
difference between assets and liabilities of resources as one way to measure the District's financial health, 
or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Districfs net position are one indicator of 
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY 

Condensed Statements of Net Position 
As of June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 

2019 2018 
Current and other assets 
Capital assets, net 

Total Assets 

Deferred outflows of resources — 
Post-employment related 
Pension Related 

Total Deferred outflows of resources 

Current and other liabilities 
Long-term liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred inflows of resources -
Post-employment related 
Pension Related 

Total Deferred inflows of resources 

Net position 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for debt service 
Restricted for net pension asset 
Unrestricted 

$ 1,944,429 $ 1,786,616 
4-090.014 4.413.905 
6.034.443 6.200.521 

8,087 2,579 
173.681 63.686 
1SL76S 66.265 

361,849 413,775 
2.004.219 L877.115 
Z366.Q68 Z290.890 

829 909 
35.116 121.352 
35.945 122.261 

2,236,578 2,480,454 
319,954 312,664 

- 71,301 
1.257.666 989.216 

Total Net Position S 3^814^198 S 3..S53.h35 
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CONSOLIDATE!) WATERWORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FR^NCISVILLE. LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DKSCLSSION AND ANALVStS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 

2019 2018 
Operating Revenue $ 1,920,288 $ 1,643,387 

Operating Expenses 1.951.877 1.706.456 
Operating income/(loss) ( 31,589) ( 63,069) 

Non-operating revenues/(expenses) ( 7.84S3 ( 76.793'! 
Change in net position ( 39,43 7) ( 139,862) 

The District's total operating revenues and expenses increased as a result of new wafer rates adopted in 
January 2019 and increases in repairs & maintenance and professional services. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND LONG-TERM DEBT 

Capital Assets 

At the end of year 2019, the District had $4,090,014, net of depreciation, invested in a broad range of 
capital assets (see table below). This amount represents a slight decrease of $323,891 or 7.3% from the 
previous period. This decrease is a result of the continued depreciation on assets, which reduces the 
carrying value. 

Capital Assets at Period End 
(Net of Depreciation) 

2019 2018 
Utility systems $ 3,971,637 $ 4,230,470 
Equipment 62,635 101,844 
Vehicles 55.742 81.591 

Total $_4.413.905 

Long-term Debt 

At the end of 2019, the District had $1,907,648 in long-term debt compared to $1,977,385 at the previous 
period end, see table below. This amount represents a decrease (comprised of predominantly bonds and 
notes principal payments) of $69,735 from the previous year end. 

Long-term Debt at Period End 

2019 2018 
Bonds payable $ 1,758,775 $ 1,819,859 
Notes payable 94,661 113,592 
Compensated absences 54.212 43.934 

Total S L9.0L64S $ 1.977.385 
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CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE. LOlirStANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 2019 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S RATES AND FEES 

The Consolidated Waterworks District No. 13 of West Feliciana Parish considered the following fectors 
and indicators when setting next year's rateSj and fees, These factors and indicators include: 

1) Long-term debt requirements 

2) Cost of operations 

3) Number of customers 

4) Intergovernmental revenues (state and local grants) 

The District does not expect any significant changes in next year's budget results as compared to the 
current year. 

CONTACTING THE CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 13 OF WEST 
FELICIANA PARISH'S MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors 
with a general overview of the Consolidated Waterworks District No. 13 of West Feliciana Parish's 
finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about 
this report or need additional financial information, contact Kenny Havard, Parish President, P.O. Box 
1921, St. Francisvillej Louisiana 70775 or 225-635-3864. 
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CQN.SOLIDA I Li) VVATERNVORKS UlSTRICT NOJ3 
OF WEST T-ELtClAlSA PARISH 

ST. FRANCI.SVILLE. LQli|SlA\A 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITTON 
.IL1NE30.2019 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivafcles. net 
Due from other governments 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Restricted assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Total restricted assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Capital assets, net of depreciation: 

Total noncurrent assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Net pension ]iabilit>' 
Toui other post-empioymcnt benefit liability 

Total deferred OMtflow of resources 

LIABILITIES 

327,012 
56K.725 
126,185 
412,177 

18.037 
.452.136 

172,339 
319,954 
492.293 

4.090,014 
4,090,014 

6,034,443 

173.681 
8.087 

181,768 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 
Compensated absences 
Customer deposits 
Due to other governments 
Bonds payable 
Notes payable 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities: 
Compensated absences 
Bonds payable 
Notes payable 
Net pension liability 
Total other post-empioyment benefit liability 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES-
Net pension ilability 
Total other post-employment benefit liability 

Tolnl deferred lon<)w«i of resources 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for debt service 
UnrestricEed 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

66,558 
25,828 

5,00fl 
172,339 

8.653 
64,538 
18,933 

361,849 

49,212 
1,694.237 

75,728 
154.304 
30.738 

2.366,068 

35,116 
829 

35.945 

2,236,578 
319,954 

1,257.666 
$ 3,&I4,I98 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCtSVILLE. LOUtSlANA 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2019 

OPERATING REVENUE 
Charges for services $ 1J33.I99 
Connection and other fees 1S7,089 

Total operating revenues K920,2S8 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries and employee benefits 641.994 
Depreciation 323,891 
Repairs and maintenance 325,193 
Professional services 206,186 
Insurance expense 22,396 
Utilities 160,157 
Supplies 42,096 
Office rent 7,000 
Office supplies 77,342 
Fuel 39,076 
Regulatory fees 58,784 
Professional development 125 
Other operating expenses 47.637 

Total operating expenses 1,951,877 

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (31,5891 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES/fEXPENSES) 
Other revenues 12.181 
Grants and contributions 69,500 
Interest expense (89,5291 

Total non-operating revenues/(expenses) (7,848) 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (39,437) 

NET POSITION: 
Net position, beginning of year 3,853,635 

Net position, end of year $ 3.814,198 

The accompanying notes are an integral of this financial statement. 
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CQNSOIJDA l ED VVATEItWORkS mS I RirT NQ.ia 
OF WKS i FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVJl.LE. LOlllSlyVNA 

STATEME^T OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR ENDEI> ,111 ^T• M). 21)19 

Cash flow From operating activities; 
Receipts frora customers and others 
Payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Payments to employees for services and benefits 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flow from noncapital financing activities: 
Grants end other contributions 
Contribution to other government 
Change in due (from) to other govemmcrts 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Principal payments on debt 
Interest paid on debt 

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchases of investments 

Net cash flows used in investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 

Reconciiiatson of operating loss to net cash provided by operaling activities: 
Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 

provided by operating activities; 
Depreciation 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in posl-empJoyment benefit asset 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items 
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows related to net pension liability 
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows related to post employment benefits 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payabJe 
Increase (decrease) In accrued expenses and other liabilities 
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 
Increase (decrease) in total post employment benefit liability 
(Increase) decrease in deferred inflows related to post employinciit benefits 
Increase (decrease) in net pension Jiabilily 
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows related to net pension liability 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash and cash equivalents include: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statcxnenl. 

S 1,860,208 
(997,476) 
(600,568) 
262,164 

SU6SI 

(60,399) 
21,282 

(80,015) 
(89.529) 

(169,544) 

(20.251) 

93,651 

405,700 

S 499,351 

s (31,589) 

323,891 
(62,754) 
71,301 

7,704 
(109,995) 

(5.508) 
(5,152) 

(14,036) 
2,674 

10,278 
7,362 

(80) 
154,304 
(86.236) 

$ 262.164 

£ 327,012 
172,339 

% 499,351 
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CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCtSVILLE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

INTRODUCTION 

The Consolidated Waterworks District No. 13 of West Fe!iclana Parish (hereinafter referred to as Ihe 
District), located in St. Francisville, Louisiana, was created by the West Feliciana Parish Government as 
allowed under Louisiana Revised Statute Section 33:7702. The West Feliciana Parish Government's 
Council acts as the board of governance for the District. There are currently five council members serving 
four year terms and they are not compensated for their services to the District. 

The District accounts for the operations and provisions of water services to the residents and businesses 
within the boundaries of the District as described in Louisiana Revised Statute Section 33:3381 et seq. 
The number of customers at June 30,2019 totaled approximately 3,000. 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Accouniina. 

In April of 1984, the Financial Accounting Foundation established the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) to promulgate generally accepted accounting principles and reporting standards 
with respect to activities and transactions of state and local governmental entities. The GASB has issued 
a Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards (GASB Codification), 
This Codification and subsequent GASB pronouncements are recognized as generally accepted 
accounting principles for state and local governments. The accompanying financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with such principles. The District is considered a component unit of West 
Feliciana Parish Government. The accompanying financial statements of the District present information 
only as to the transactions of the programs of the District as authorized by Louisiana statutes and 
administrative regulations. These financial statements do not include the transactions or activities of the 
West Feliciana Parish Government, The District's financial statements follow the guidance mentioned in 
GASB Statement No. 62, Codificaiion of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in 
Pre-November 1989 FASB and AlCPA Pronouncements, 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized and reported in the financial 
statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the 
measurement focus applied. 

The District accounts for its activities in an enterprise fund. An enterprise fund is accounted for on an 
economic resources measurement focus. The fund is maintained on the accrual basis of accounting 
wherein revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and become 
meastirable, and expenses are recognized in the accounting period incurred, if measurable. Revenue 
resulting from exchange transactions in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value is 
recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. 

The District distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally resiili from services provided in cormectioii with the District's principal 
operations. Operating expenses include the cost of services, administrative expenses and depreciation of 
capital assets. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues 
and expenses. 
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CONSOUDATED WATERW^ORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcQntrnuem 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments witli original maturities of three months or leas from the date of acquisition. 

Accounts Receivable 

Receivables are recognized based on the monthly amounts billed for water consumption of District 
customers. The allowance for uncollectible accounts is based on managemenfs estimate of the 
coilectability of the receivables based on current economic conditions, experience, and other relevant 
factors. Accounts receivable are recorded net of an allowance of uncollectable accounts of $40,618 at 
June 30, 2019. 

The District had no recorded bad debts for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

The District requires a customer deposit upon initial account opening for use of the District-owned water 
meter at each residence or business. The District must hold the deposit until the customer's account is 
closed and at that time the deposit is returned to the customer. 

Due tTom/To Other Governments 

The aclivities between governments that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements that are 
outstanding at tlie end of the period. 

Prepaid Expenses 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in the statement of net position. 

Restricted Assets 

Based upOJi certain bond covenants^ the District is required to establish and maintain prescribed amounts 
of resources (consisting of investments) in special funds that can be used only to service outstanding debt. 
These assets are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net position because their use is limited. 
Also included in restricted assets are customer deposits that were paid during the initial account opening. 

Capital assets are carried at historical costs. Depreciation of exhaustible capital assets used by the District 
is charged as an expense against operations in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Position. Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation are reported on the Statement of Net Position. 
Depreciation is computed using the straight line method over the estimated useful life of the assets, 
generally 10 to 40 years for buildings and building improvements and 5 to 10 years for moveable 
property. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are charged to earnings as incurred. 
Major expenditures for renewals and betterments are capitalized. 

- 12-



CQNSOLroATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NQ.I3 
or WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FR^VNCisSVlLLE. LOUISfANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcontinued) 

Compensated Absences 

The District allows annual leave to regular full-time employees based on length of service. No leave is^ 
earned^ however, while on suspension or leave without pay status. Annual leave may be carried over to 
the next calendar year. There is no limit on the amount of annual leave an employee may accumulate 
during the term of his/her employment, but it is with an understanding that only a maximum of 240 hours 
will be paid to the employees upon retirement or separation. Employees are not paid for their unused 
annual leave at year-end, but are paid for accumulated, unused leave upon termmation. 

The District's regular full-time employees earn a certain amount of sick leave each year, depending upon 
the length and their employment status. Sick leave can be accumulated without limitation. Upon 
separation of employment, excluding retirement, no sick leave shall be paid to employees. The balance of 
the sick leave shall be kept on the schedule for a period of five years and reinstated if the employee is 
rehired. 

The District's regular full-time employees may accrue compensatory time in lieu of overtime payment. 
Compensator time may be carried over to the next calendar year. There is no limit on the amount of 
compensatory time an employee may accumulate during tlie term of his/her employment, but it is the 
District's practice that only a maximum of 40 hours will be paid to employees upon retirement or 
separation. 

Pension Plans 

The Consolidated Waterworks District No. 13 of West Feliciana Parish (the District) is a participating 
employer in a defined benefit pension plan as described in Note 8. For purposes of measuring the net 
pension liability, deferred outflows of lesources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and 
pension expense, information about the fiduciaiy net position of each of the plans, and additions 
to/deductions from the plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by the plan. For tills purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments have been 
reported at fair value within the plan. 

Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources, less liabilities, 
less deferred inflows of resources. The net investment in capital assets component of net position consists 
of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any debt 
proceeds used for the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets. 

The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources related to those restricted assets. The restricted component of net position is used 
when there are limitations imposed on their use of an asset by external parties such as creditors, grantors, 
laws or regulations of other governments, 
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CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE. LOLHSIA.NA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcontinuedl 

Net Position (continued) 

The unrestricted component of net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment 
in capital assets or the restricted component of net position. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use for a particular project or purpose, it 
is the government's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Deferred Qutflowsi/lnfiows of Resources 

The statement of financial position will often report a separate section for deferred outflows and (or) 
deferred inflows of financial resources. Deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position 
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until 
that time. 

Lone-Term Debt 

Long-term debt and other long-term obligation are reported as liabilities. Bond issuance costs, excluding 
any prepaid bond insurance, are reported as expense in the year of debt issuance. Bond debt premiums, 
discounts, and gains (losses) on refundings are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
effective interest method. Bonds payable is reported net of the applicable bond premium discount, Gains 
(losses) on refundings are reported as deferred outflows/inflows of resources. 

Investments 

The District maintains investment accounts as authorized by the Louisiana Revised Statutes. Under state 
law, the District may invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, or certificates of 
deposit. Investments are caitled at fair market value as of the balance sheet date. 

Estimates 

The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 
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CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE. LOUlSLySA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. SLMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcontmuedl 

Current Year Adoption of New Accounting Slandard^ 

In March 2018, the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB Statement No. 88 
(GASB 88), Ceriain Disclosures Related to Debt, mclvdwg Direct Bon'owwgs and Direct Placements. 
The statement clarifies the definition of debt for disclosure purposes and expands the required debt 
disclosures to provide more detoil about govenimental obligations. GASB 88 defines debt for puiposes of 
disclosures as a liability that arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or another financial asset) in 
one or more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date when the contractual obligation is 
established. GASB 88 requires that direct borrowings and placements be disclosed separately from other 
types of debt and also provides additional guidance for disclosures related to debt. The provisions of 
GASB 88 are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Additional 
disclosures are included in Note 7. 

In November 2016, the GASB Issued GASB 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations (ARO). Tins 
standard establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of an ARO liability and 
a corresponding deferred outflow of resources. An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated witli 
the sale, recycling, retirement, abandonment or disposal in some other manner of a tangible capital asset 
permanently removed from service. Additional disclosures are included in Note 14. 

2. DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTMENTS 

Deposits with Financial Institutions 

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits at local financial institutions with a canying value of 
$499,351 at June 30, 2019. Deposits in financial institutions can be exposed to custodial credit risk. 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the District's deposits 
may not be returned to them. To mitigate this risk, state law requires deposits to be secured by federal 
deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent financial institution. As of June 
30, 2019 the District's bank balances of these deposits totaled $308,816 which was covered partially by 
federal depository insurance of $250,000. Any remaining balances the District may have during the year 
are required to be protected against custodial credit risk by collateral held by the pledging banks' trust 
department or agent in the District's name. The District does not maintain a separate custodial credit rtsk policy. 
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CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO.I3 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2. DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTMENTS (continued^ 

Investments 

As of June 30,2019, the District had the following investments: 

Investment Tvne Fair Value 

Investments measured at 
the net asset value (NAV) 

External investment pool ^ 888.679 

The $888,679 in investments is invested in LAMP. LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., a non­
profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana. Only local government entities 
having contracted to participate in LAMP have an investment interest in its pool of assets. The 
primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the placement of public funds in 
shoit term, high quality investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other 
obligations in which local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in accordance with LA-
R.S. 33.2955. 

• Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. 

• interest rale risk: LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate 
access to their account balances. LAMP prepares its own interest rate disclosure using the 

• weighted average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of LAMP assets is restricted to not 
more than 60 days and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days. 

• Concenlraiion of credit risk: The District does not have a limit on the amount the District 
may invest in one issuer. One hundred percent of the District's investment are in LAMP 
funds. 

• Foreiim currency risk: Not applicable. LAMP complies with the provisions of Louisiana 
Law concerning permissible investments for municipalities, parishes and other political 
subdivisions set for in La R.S. 33:2955 and the investment policy does not provide for 
investment in foreign obligations. 

The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value based on quoted market rates. The fair value is 
determined on a weekly basis by LAMP and the vahie of the position in the external investment pool 
is the same as the value of the pool shares. 

LAMPj Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and board of directors. LAMP 
is not registered with the SEC as an investmeiit company. 
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CONSOLTDATrP WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO.I3 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL S l ATFiVIENTS 

2. DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL iNSTfTCTlONS AND IWESTMENTS fcQntmued^ 

Investments (continued) 

An annua! audit of LAMP is conducted by an independent certified public accountant. The 
Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana has full access to the records of LAMP. 

LAMP issues financial reports which can be obtained by writing: LAMP, Inc., 228 St Charles 
Avenue, Suite 1123, New Orleans, LA 70130. 

3. RESTRICTED ASSETS 

At June 30,2019, the District had the following restricted assets: 

Investments for debt service $ 319,954 
Cash for customer deposits 172.339 

•'i; 49? 293 

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

The following is a summary of accounts receivable at June 30,2019: 

Charges for services S 166.803 
Allowance for uncollectabie accounts ( 40.6181 

Total I 126.185 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS 

The following is a summary of the changes in capital assets for the District for the year ended June 30, 
2019: 

Balance Balance 
06/30/2018 Additions Deletions 06/30/2019 

Utility Systems 
Equipment 
Vehicle 

$ 10,273,893 $ 
395,431 
182,910 

$ - $ 10,273,893 
395,431 
182,910 

10,852.234 - 10.852,234 

Less: accumulated deoreclatinn 
Utility Systems 
Equipment 
Vehicles 

(6,043,423) 
(293,587) 
(101,319) 

(258,833) 
(39,209) 
(25,849) 

(6,302,256) 
(332,796) 
(127,168) 

(6,43 8J29) (323,891) (6,762,220) 

Total capital assets, net $ 4,413,905 $ (323,891) $ - $ 4,090,014 
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CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

$. DISAGGREGATION OF ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

Accounts, salaries and benefits, and other payables as of June 30, 2019, were as follows. 

Vendors 
Salaries and benefits payable 
Interest payable 

Total governmental fund encumbrances 

$ 66,558 
23,473 
2.355 

M3M 

7. LONG-TERM DEBT 

a. Activities 

Long-term debt activity of the District for the year ended June 30,2019 was as follows; 

Bonds Payable 
Notes Payable 
Compensated Absences 

Beginning 
Balance 

S 1.819,859 
113,592 
43,934 

Additions Reductions 
61,084) 
18,931) 
5.0001 

($ 
( 

15.278 i 

Ending 
Balance 
1,758,775 

94,661 
54.212 

Amounts 
Due within 
One Year 

S 64,538 
18,933 

5.0Q0 
S L977.385 S 15-278 iS 85,0151 LL90-LM8 $ S8.471 

b. Bonds and Notes Payable 

For the purpose of improving and extending the waterworks system, the District Issued $2,600,000 in 
water revenue bonds during the year ended December 31,1997. 

Based on an agreement with the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development executed 
on March 9, 1999, and pursuant to the provisions of La RS 48;3S1 (C), the District owed $98,097 for 
its share of line relocation costs on the Bains Project. The total project cost $356,456 which was paid 
by the La DOTD, but the District was responsible for 27.52% of it. An agreement was n^de with the 
La DOTD to repay 10% per year beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. With 
installments of $9,810 paid annually, this loan will be fully paid during the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2024. The balance at June 30, 2019, was $49,048. 

Based on an agreement with the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development executed 
on March 19, 2007, and pursuant to the provisions of La RS 48:381 (C), the District owed $91,228 
for its share of line relocation costs on the Thompson Creek Project. The total project costs $656,786 
which was paid by the La DOTD, but the District was responsible for 13.89% of it. An agreement 
was made with the La DOTD to repay 10% per year beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2015. With installments of $9,123 paid annually, this loan will be fully paid during the fiscal year 
ending June 30,2024. The balance at June 30, 2019, was $45,613. 



CONSOLIDATFD WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO.I3 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCI5VILLF. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

7. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

b* Bonita ami Notes Puvabie (continued) 

Bonds and Notes outstanding were as follows at June 30, 2019t 

Date of 
Issue 

Water Revenue Bonds, Series 1997, 5.0% 
Utility Relocation Agreement, No. 09069 
Utility Relocation Agreement, No. 0S947 

3/20/1997 
3/9/1999 

3/19/2007 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 

Original/Notional 
Balance 

$ 2,600,000 
98,097 
9L228 

S 2.789.325 $_JL8^3„436 

1,758,775 
49,048 
45.613 

Water Revenue Bonds. Series 1997 

These bonds were offered for public sale that are subject to the following: 

» Events of default with finance-related consequences - These bonds would be in default 
for failure of payment of principal and interest when due, failure to comply with the 
provisions of the resolution, or shall default in any covenant for a period of 30 days after 
written notice thereof. 

» Subjective acceleration clauses — The Government may prepay the whole or any part of 
the principal amount of any Installment on any Bond at any time. 

Principal and interest paytnents are due as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30. PriDcinal Interest Total 

2020 $ 83,471 $ 86,158 S 169,629 
2021 86,773 82,856 169,629 
2022 90,244 79,385 169.629 
2023 93,892 75,737 169,629 
2024 97,723 71,901 169,624 

2025-2029 458,729 294,751 753,480 
2030-2034 588,713 164,767 753.480 
2035-2037 35X891 23.658 377.549 

!li 1.833.436 S 879.213 S 2.732.649 

The District did not have any Direct Borrowings/Placements at June 30,2019. 
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CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

8. PENSION PLAN 

The Consolidated Waterworks District No. 13 of West Feliciana Parish (the District) is a participating 
employer in one cost-sharing defined benefit pension plans. This plan is administered by a public 
employee retirement system, the Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana- Plan B (PERS 
or System). Article X, Section 29(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the autiiority to 
establish and amend benefit provisions of this plan to the State Legislature. The system Is administered by 
a separate board of trustees and is a component unit of the State of Louisiana. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the system. This report may be obtained by writing, calling or 
downloading the report as follows: 

PERS: 
7905 Wrenwood Blvd, 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
70809 
(225) 928-1361 
wvm.persla.org 

The District implemented Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 68 on 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Statement 71 on Pension Transition for 
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an Amendment of GASB 68. These 
standards require the District to record its proportional share of the pension plan Net Pension Liability 
(Asset) and report the following disclosures: 

Plan Descriptions: 

Parochial Emnlovecs' Retirement System of Louisiana (PERS> 

Parochial Employees^ Retirement System of Louisiana is the administrator of a cost sharing multiple 
employer defined benefit pension plan. The System was established and provided for by R.S.I 1:1901 of 
the Louisiana Revised Statute (LRS). The System provides retirement benefits to employees of taxing 
districts of a parish or any branch or section of a parish within the State which does not have their own 
retirement system and which elects to become members of the system. The following Is a description of 
the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information purposes only. Participants should refer 
to these appropriate statutes for more complete information. 

Eligibility Requirements: 
All permanent parish government employees (except those employed by Orleans, Lafourche and East 
Baton Rouge Parishes) who work at least 28 hours a week shall become members on the date of 
employment. New employees meeting the age and Social Security criteria have up to 90 days from the 
date of hire to elect to participate. 

As of January 1997, elected officials, except coroners, justices of the peace, and parish presidents may no 
longer join the System. 

-20 -



CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS PTSTRJCr NO.I3 
OF ^VEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE, LOtllSiANA 

NOTES TO THE ITNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

B. PENSION PLAN fcontinuedl 

Plan Descriptions; (continued) 

Retirement Benefits: 

Any member of Plan B can retire providing he/she meets one of the following criteria: 

For employees hired prior to January I, 2007: 

1. Age 55 with 30 years of creditable service. 
2. Age 60 with a minimum of ten 10 years of creditable service. 
3. Age 65 with a minimum of seven 7 years of creditable service. 

For employees hired after January 1, 2007; 

1. Age 55 with 30 years of service. 
2. Age 62 with 10 years of service. 
3. Age 67 with 7 years of service. 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan B shall consist of an 
amount equal to two percent of the members' final average compensation multiplied by his years of 
creditable service. However, under certain conditions, as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited 
to specified amounts. 

Plan B members need ten (10) years of service credit to be eligible for survivor benefits, Upon the death 
of any member of Plan B with twenty (20) or more years of creditable service who is not eligible for 
normal retirement, the plan provides for an automatic Option 2 benefit for the surviving spouse when 
he/she reaches age 50 and until remarriage, ifthe remarriage occurs before age 55. 

A surviving spouse who is not eligible for Social Security survivorship or retirement benefits, and 
married not less than twelve (12) months immediately preceding death of the member, shall be paid an 
Option 2 benefit beginning at age 50. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan: 
Act 338 of 1990 established the Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) for the Retirement System. 
DROP is an option for that member who is eligible for normal retirement. 

In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement, any member of Plan A or B who is 
eligible to retire may elect to participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) in which they 
are enrolled for three years and defer the receipt of benefits. During participation in the plan, employer 
contributions are payable but employee contributions cease. The monthly retirement benefits that would 
be payable, had the person elected to cease employment and receive a service retirement allowance, are 
paid into the DROP Fund. 
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CONSOLtPATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NQ.Il 
OF WEST FEL1C[ANA PARISH 

ST. FKANCISVIl.LE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

S. PENSION FLAN fcontinued^ 

Upon termination of employjnenl prior to or at the end of the specified period of participation, a 
participant in the DROP may receive, at his option, a lump sum from the account equal to the payments 
into the account, a true annuity based upon his account balance in that tund. or rail over the fund to an 
Individual Retirement Account, 

Interest is accrued on the DROP benefits for the period between the end of DROP participation and the 
member's retirement date. 

For individuals who become eligible to participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Plan on or after 
January 1, 2004, all amounts which remain credited to the individuars subaccount after tenninaiion in the 
Plan will be placed in liquid asset money market investments at the discretion of the board of trustees. 
These subaccounts may be credited with interest based on money market rates of return or, at the option 
of the System, the funds may be credited to self-directed subaccounts. The participant in the self-directed 
portion of this Plan must agree that the benefits payable lo the participant are not the obligations of the 
stulo or the System, and thai any returais and other rights of the Plan are the sole liability and 
responsibility of the participant and the designated provider to which contributions have been made. 

For Plan B, a member shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he/she was hired prior to 
January 1, 2007, and has at least five years of creditable service or if hired after January I, 2007, has 
seven years of creditable service, and is not eligible for normal retirement, and has been officially 
certified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. Upon retirement caused by disability, a 
member of Plan B shall be paid a disability benefit equal lo the lesser of an amount equal to two percent 
of the member's final average compensation multiplied by his years of service, not to be less than fifteen, 
or an amount equal to what the member's normal benefit would be based on the member's current final 
compensation but assuming the member remained in continuous service until his earliest normal 
retirement age. 

Funding Policy 

Article X, Section 29(EX2Xa) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the Legislature the authoriiy 
to determine employee contributions. Employer contributions are actuarially detennined using statutorily 
established methods on an annual basis and are constitutionally required to cover the employer's portion 
of the normal cost and provide for the amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Employer 
contributions are adopted by the Legislature annually upon recommendation of the Public Retirement 
Systems' Actuarial Committee (PRSAC). 

Contributions to the plan is required and determined by State statute (which may be amended) and are 
expressed as a percentage of covered payroll. The contribution rates in effect for the year ended June 30, 
2019, for the District and covered employees were as follows: 

District Employees 
Parochial Employees' Retir^nent System of 
Louisiana: 

Plan B 7.50% 3.00% 
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CQNSOLrPATEP WATERWORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE F[NANCtAL STATEMENTS 

8, PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Funding Policy (continued) 

The contributions made to the Systems for the past three fiscal years, which equaled the required 
contributions for each of these years, were as follows: 

June 30, 

2019 2018 2017 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of 
Louisiana: 

PlanB $ 41,577 $ 45,291 $ 46,212 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

The following schedule lists the District's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability allocated by 
each of the pension plans based on the December 31, 2018 measurement date. The District uses this 
measurement to record its Net Pension Liability and associated amounts as of June 30, 2019 in 
accordance with GASB Statement 68. The schedule also includes the proportionate share allocation rate 
used at December 31, 2018 along with the change compared to the December 31, 2017 rate. The 
District's proportion of the Net Pension Liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term 
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
employers, actuarially determined. 

Net Pension 
Liability at 

December 31, 2018 
Parochial Employees' 
Retirement System of Louisiana: 

Plan B $ 154,304 

Rate at 
December 31.2018 

2.266758^0 

Increase 
(Decrease) to 

December 31,2017 
Rate 

(0.046177®/0 

The following schedule list the pension plan's recognized pension expense plus employer's amortization 
of change in proportionate share and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share 
of contributions by the District for the year ended June 30, 2019: 

Parochial Employees' Retirement 
System of Louisiana: 

PlanB 

Pension Expense 

61,922 
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CONSOLIDATED WATKRWORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE, LOLilSIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PENSION PLAN (continued^ 

At June 30, 2019, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

pension plan investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between Employer 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement 

date 
Total 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

$ 
42,875 

105,662 

90 

25,054 
$ 173,681 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

$ (34,380) 

(126) 

(610) 

S (35,116) 

Summary totals of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources by pension plan: 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 

FlanB $ 173.681 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

£ (35,116) 

The District reported a total of $25,054 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension contributions 
made to the System subsequent to the measurement which will be recognized as a reduction in Net 
Pension Liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

PERSB 
$ 36,090 

16,197 
14,976 
46,248 

$ 113,511 
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CONSOLTOATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO.I3 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANClSVILLi:. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

S. PENSION PLAN fcontinued^ 

Actuarial Assumptions 
A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability for 
the pension plan is as follows: 

PERS 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Expected Remaining 
Service Lives 
investment Rate 
of Return 
Inflation Rate 

Mortality 

Salary Increases 

Cost of Living 
Adjustments 

Method used In 
determining long-term 
rale of return on 
pension plan assets 

December 31,2018 
Entry Age Nonnal 

4 years 
6.50% net of investment expenses 

2.40% per annum 

Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for health Retirees multiplied by 130% for 
males and 125% for females usmg MP2018 scale for annuitant and beneficiaiy mortality. For 
employeeSj the Pub-2D1D Public Retirenient Plans Mortality Table for General Employees 
multiplied by 130% for males and 125% tor females using MP2018 scale. PB-2010 Public 
Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General Disabled Retirees multiplied by 130% for 
males and 125% for females using MP2018 scale for disabled annuitants. 
4.25% 

The present value of future retirement benefits is based on benefits currently being paid by 
the System and includes previously granted cost of living increases. The present values do 
not include provisions for potential future increases not yet authorized by the Board of 
Trustees. 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
trianguiation method which integrated the capital asset pricing model (top-down), a treasury 
yield curve approach (bottom-up) and an equity building-block model (bottom-up). Risk 
return and correlations are projected on a forward looking basis in equilibrium, in which best 
estimates of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These rates are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation 
of 2.00% and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The resulting 
expected long-term rate of return is 7.43% for the year ended December 31,2018. 
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rONSOLmATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLF.. LOL ISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

8. PENSION PLAN (continued^ 

The following table provides a sumnaaxy of the best estimates of arithmetic/geometric real rates of return 
for each major asset class included in the Retirement System's target asset allocations as of December 31. 
2018: 

Long-Term 
Target Expected Real 

Allocation Rate of Return 

Asset Class PERS PERS 
Equities 52.0% 3.45% 
Fixed income 35.0% 1.22% 
Alternatives 11.0% 0.65% 
Real assets 2.0% 0.11% 

Total 100.0% 5.43% 

Inflation 2.00% 
Expected Arithmetic 
Nominal Return 7.43% 

Discount Rate 

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions 
will be made at the current contribution rate and that sponsor contributions will be made at rates equal to 
the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those 
assumptionsj each of the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to ail periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for PERS was 
6.50%, for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

The following table presents the District's proportionate share of the Net Pension (NP) Liability (Asset) 
using the discount rate of the Retirement System as well as what the District's proportionate share of the 
NP Liability (Asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point 
lower or one percentage-point higher than the current rate used by the Retirement System: 

Current 
1.0% Decrease Discount Rate 1.0% Increase 

PERSB 
Rates 5.50% 6.50% 7.50% 
District's Share of NP 

Liability $ 405,961 $ 154,304 $ (55,942) 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

There were no balances due the retirement system at June 30, 2019, 
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CQNSOUDATED WATrRWORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST, FRANClSVlLLEs LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

9. RISK MANAGEMENT 

Litigation and General Liability 

The District is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, daiuage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District has purchased 
various insurance policies to cover such risks. 

The District is a defendant in various lawsuits. Management and legal counsel for the District believe that 
potential claims against the District not covered by insurance would not materially affect the District's 
financial position. 

10. OTHER POST EMPLO\TlTENT BENEHTS 

General Information about the OPEB Plan 

Plan description - The District provides certain continuing health care and life insurance benefits for 
its retired employees. The District's OPEB Plan (the OPEB Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit 
OPEB plan administered by the District. The authority to establish and/or amend the obligation of the 
employer, employees and retirees rests with the District as provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 
Title 17 Sections 1221 through 1224. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Section P52 Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions—Reporting For Benefits Not Provided Through Trusts That Meet 
Specified Criteria—Defined Benefit. 

Benefits Provided — Medical benefits are provided through a comprehensive medical plan and are 
made available to employees upon actual retirement. Most employees are covered by the Parochial 
Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana, whose retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions 
are as follows: 30 years of service at any age; age 55 and 25 years of service; age 60 and 10 years of 
service; or, age 65 and 7 years of service. For employees hired on and after January I, 2008, 
retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: age 55 and 30 years of service; age 
62 and 10 years of service; or, age 67 and 7 years of service. 

Employees covered by benefit terms — At July 1, 2018, the following employees were covered by the 
benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 
Active employees 12 

12 
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CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANClSVlLLi:. LOtLSIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

10. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT DENEFITS (continued) 

The District's total OPEB liability of S30,73S was measured as of June 30, 2019 and was determined by 
an actuarial valuation as of that date July 1, 201S. 

Actuarial Assumptions and other inputs — Th& total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2018 actuarial valuation 
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to ail periods included 
in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 2.5% 
Salary increases 3,0%, including inflation 
Prior Discount rate 3.87% annually 
Discount rate 3.50% annually 
Healthcare cost trend rates Flat 5.5% annually 

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyers'^ 20 Year General Obligation municipal bond index as of 
June 30,2019, the end of the applicable measurement period. 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Table without projection with 50%/50% unisex blend. 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Balance at June 30, 2018 $ 23,376 

Changes for the year: 
Service cost 557 
Interest 915 
Differences between expected and actual experience 4,551 
Changes in assumptions 1,339 
Benefit payments and net transfers 

Net changes 7,362 

Balance at June 30, 2019 $ 30,738 
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CONSOI.IPATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO.I3 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE. LOULSIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

10. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

Sensitiviiy of ike total OPEB liabilily to changes in the discount rate - The following presents the total 
OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.50%) or 1-percentage-point higher 
(4.50%) than the current discount rate: 

1.00% Decrease Current Discount 1.00% Increase 
(2.50%) Rate (3.50%) (4.50%) 

Total OPEB liability S 35,412 $ 30,738 $ 26,787 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates - The followiiig 
presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total OPEB liability would 
be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (4.50%) or 1-
percentage-point higher (6.50%) than the current healthcare trend rates: 

1.00% Decrease Current Trend 1.00% Increase 
(4.50%) (5.50%) (6.50%) 

Total OPEB liability J 26.561 $ 30,738 $ 35,692 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized OPEB expense of $1,818. At June 30,2019, the 
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from 
the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred Inflows 
Outflows of of Resources 
Resources 

Differences between expected and actual 
experience 
Changes in assumptions 
Total 

$ 6,806 S 
1,281 (829) 

$ 8,087 $ (829) 
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CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS D[STRtCT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

S L FRANCISVILLE, LOl tSlANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

10. OTHER POST EMPLQ^ENT BENEFITS (continued) 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inilows of Resources Related to 
OPEB (continued) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Years ending June 30: 
2020 $ 342 
2021 342 
2022 342 
2023 342 
2024 342 

2025-2029 IJIO 
2030 - 2034 U710 
2025-2039 1,710 

2040 418 
$ 7,258 

11. LEASES 

The District paid $7,000 to West Feliciana Parish Government for office space during the fiscal period on 
a month-to-month basis at a rate of $583 per month, 

12. CONTINGENCIES 

The District participates in federal and state assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to state 
and federal monitoring examinations which could result in disallowed costs having to be returned to the 
granting agency. Management believes that further examinations would not result in material disallowed 
costs. 

13. CURRENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS SCHEDULED TO BE IMPLEMENTED 

Following is a summary of accounting standards adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) that are scheduled to be implemented in the future that may affect the District's financial 
report: 

GASB Statement 84, Fiduciary Activities. This standard defines and establishes criteria for identifying 
and reporting fiduciary activities. The focus of the criteria is on (1) whether the District controls the 
assets in a fiduciary activity and (2) there are separate identifiable beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary 
relationship exists. The standard is effective for annual repotting periods beginning after December 15, 
2019. The District will include the requirements of this standard, as applicable, in its June 30, 2020 
financial statement. The effect of this standard or its applicability to the District are unknown at this time. 
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CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLL. LOtUSlANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

13. CURRENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS SCHEDULED TO BE IMPLEMENTED (continued) 

GASB Statement 87, Leases. This standard will require all leases to be reported on the statement of net 
position under a single accounting model for both lessors and lessees. The statement will require the 
recognition of lease assets or liabilities for leases previously reported as operating leases. Both operating 
and capital leases will be reported under this single accounting method and reported by lessees as an 
intangible right to use asset and by jessors as a receivable with both reporting a deferred inflow of 
resources. The standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. 
The District will include the requirements of this standard, as applicable, in its June 30, 2021 financial 
statement. All of the District's lease agreements will need to be evaluated to determine the impact of 
implementing this standard; however, the effect of this standard or its applicability to the District are 
unJoiown at this time. 

14. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 

The District has determined that any asset retirement obligation (ARO) in relation to its water distribution 
systems would not be materia) to the fmancial statements, and therefore not recognized, as of the year 
ended June 30, 2019. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 



CQNSQUDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 13 
f>F WKST FF.IJriANA PARISH 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN 
TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

VEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Finnnckl 
slateiTiBril MeasurnieTlC 

reportifig date date 

6/3(W20l9 
6/30/2018 

Service cost Interest 

6/30/2019 S 
6/30/2018 

557 
5M 

9J5 
804 

Difference 
between actual 
and expected 

eKperiertce 

4,551 
2,696 

Changes of 
essumpiions or 

other inputs 

1,339 
(909) 

Benefii 
pevmants 

Net change In 
total OPEB 

liability 

7J62 
1.145 

Total OPEB 
liabili^' 
beginning 

S 23.376 
20.231 

Total OPEB 
Ifabili:^ -
ending 

S 30.738 
23,376 

Covered oayroll 

S 461.008 
447.581 

Total OPES 
liabi[% as a 

perc^tage of 
covered 
payroll 

6,67% 
123% 

This schedule is intended to show infonnadon for 10 years. Additional years wil] be displayed as they become available. 

Benijii Changes. 
There were no changes of bene fit terms for the year ended JLa>e30, 2019 

Changes of Assuniprions. 
The changes in assuplions balance was a result of changes in the discourit rate. The following are the djcount rates 
used for in each measurement of total OPEB liability 

Measutemorit 
Date Distxtunt Rale 
6/30/3017 3-58% 
6/30/2018 3.87% 
6/30/2019 3.50% 
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Pension 
Plan Year 

rnN.SOI.inATF.I> WATKWWORkS ms t WKH NO. 13 
(>l WkST 1 KI.IC IANA PAKISII 

.ST. I K.VNCISVJI.1 I • l Ol IMVNA 

SrHEDI Li: OF MIF »ISTltirT'S I'WOt'ORTIONATK.SII VRHnn ilkNET PUNSIOV I.IAHII.HY 
VKAR ENDED .IL NK.AU. 21119 t'> 

Eiriployer's 
Proponfonale 

Share of (he Net 
Pension Liabtli^ 

(Asset) as a 
Percentage ofits 
Covered Payroll 

Etnpioyer's Proponion of the 
Net Pgnsioft Uabiiity (Asact) 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System ofLouisiana Plan B 
2019 0 5711% 
2018 0,5M7% 
2017 D.5551% 
2016 05587% 
20IS 0,5fi67% 

Employer's 
Proportionate Share of 

the Net Pension 
Linbiitty tAsi;ct|i 

154,304 
(71,301) 
75,117 
«,478 

1,627 

Employ et's 
C(}vered Payroll 

584,206 
577,641 
544,260 
536,970 
525,397 

26.4126% 
-12-3435% 
13.8017% 
)S5258% 
0.3097% 

plan Fiduciary Net 
Position as a Percentage of 
the Total Perrslon Llabillly 

88.86% 
I0L98% 
94.15% 
92.23% 
99.15% 

Schethilti is iwended fo show ir^maiioHJbf Wysan. Adtimonaiysars wiit be dispiaynd as they btcome <reaUable. 

(•) The amount presented have a TneBSUremcnt date of the previotis calendar year as the measuramenl date. 
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rOIVSOHDATKU WATKRWORKS ni.Vt Rtf: ! Nft 13 
OF WEST FKl.iriANA PARISH 

sr. FRANCTSVLLLE. LOLHSJANA 

sc Hh:mit-K OF HIE DIS I KIC"i'S c!oivntJBti'nos's TO TIIF. RETtREMENTSv^rriLM 
VRAR ENDED Jl'TSF. 30. 2019 

FensTon 
Fttn Yew 

Csfltnciually Required 
Coniributiojs' 

Coniributions in 
Relation to 

Contractually Required 
Contribulipn^ 

ConlribuEion 
Deficicnay 
(Excess) 

Empioyer's 
Covered Pavroll^ 

Contributions u a % of 
Covered l^avrofl 

ParDobial Employees' RetiteinenC System ofLoUlsiana Plan B 
2019 4t.57T 
2018 43.290 
2017 46,2!! 
2016 A6.2A2 
2015 47,928 

41,577 
45,290 

46,282 
47.928 

553,124 
584,206 
577,641 
544.260 
356.970 

7,489734 
7,7524% 
8,0000% 
8 5037% 
8 9256% 

Sehiduie is inltruhd lo show ur/bfimfion for /d y^n. Addilional yatars wiil be dispJiH^el as they becaine available. 

For reference Citfyi 

' Employer eopirihuHon rate tttultiphed by employer's covered payroll 

^ Actual employer coafrfbun'ons remitted to Hetifetnent ^slems 

^ Employer's covered payroll amourjt for each of the fiscal year ended June 3D. 

'3A-



CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT N0.13 
OF WEST FELICIANA FAHISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLr:. LOUISfANA 

NO rrs TO THE REOtlRFD SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
FOR THE YEAR EiNDFD JirNE 30. 2019 

Changes of Benefit Terms include: 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana Plan B 

• No changes noted 

Changes of Assumptions 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana Plan B 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30,2018. The investment rate of 
return changed from 1% to 6.75%. 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30,2019: 

• The investment rate of return changed from 6.75% to 6.50%, 
• The inflation rate was changed from 2.50% to 2.40%. 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



CQNSOUDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 13 
or WEST FliLlCUNA PARISH 

ST. KItANCISV tLLE. LOHSIANA 

SCHEDULE OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH GOVERNMENT COUNCIL MEMBERS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 

TKe District is operated under the authority of the West Feliciana Parish Government. The council members are not compensated for 
their services to the District. 

Below is a listing of the West Feliciana Parish Council Members. 

Term Beginning January 1, 20T6 

Sydney Picou Walker At Large 
P.O. Box 518 
St, Franclsville^ LA 70775 

MeJvin Young 
6900 Greenwood Road 
St, Francisville, LA 70775 

District A 

John Thompson District B 
11126 Wakefield Drive North 
St Francisville, LA 70775 

Melville Percy 
4888 Audubon Lane 
St Francisville, LA 70775 

District C 

William "BiH" May III 
10695 FiretowerRoad 
St Francisville, LA 70775 

District D 
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CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PAJRISH 

ST. FIL'^NCISVILLE. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION. BENEFITS, AND OTHER PAYMENTS 
TO THE PARISH PRESIDENT 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2CI19 

The District is operated under the authority of the West Feliciana Parish Government, The 
parish president is not compensated for his services to the District. 

Parish President's Name; Kenny Havard 
(1/1/19 to 6/30/19) 

Salary $ 
Benefits - insurance 

Parish President's Name: Kevin Coubig 
(7/1/18 to 12/31/18) 

Salary 
Benefits - insurance 
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CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 13 
or WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE, LOtllStANA 

SCHEDULE OE INSURANCE IN FORCE 
JUNKin. 2Qii^ 
fllNAliPlTED) 

Coverage 

General Liability 

liisuj'flnee Company 

Excess Liability 

Crime 

Property 

rnland Marine 

Atlantic Speciality Insurance Co. 

E\pirntion_ Liability Limits 

Auto Liability Atlantic Speciality Insurance Co. 

Professional Liability Atlantic Specialty Insurance Co. 

Atlantic Specialty Insurance Co. 

Travelers Casually and Surety Co 

EMCASCO Ins Companies 

EMCASCO Ins Cornpantes 

BoUer and Machinery Hartford Steam Boiler Inspection 
& Insurance Company 

Workers CotnpensatioD LUBA Casualty Insurance Co 

Student Accident Zurich American Insurance Company 

Cyber Liability BCS Insurance Company 

4/25/2020 $2,000,000 Each Occurrence 
$2,000,000 Aggregate Limit 

4/25/2020 $1,000,000 Each Accident 

4/25/2020 $1,000,000 Each Wrongful Act 
$2,000,000 Aggregate Limit 

4/25/2020 $1,000,000 Each Claim 
$2,000,000 Aggregate Limit 

4/25/2022 $500,000 Employee Theft 
$1,000,000 Funds Transfer Fraud 

4/25/2020 $21,644,895 Blanket Limit of Insurance- Property 
$50,000 Utility Services 

4/25/2020 $1,930,855 Equipment 
$217,892 electronic data 
$400,000 Equipment leased 

4/25/2020 $50,000>000 Equipment Breakdown Limit 

1/1/2020 $l,QOO,OOOLimit 

5/31/2021 $1,000,000 Maximum Benefit including ali sports 
except football 

4/25/2020 $ 1,000,000 Each Incident 
$1,000,000 Aggregate Limit 
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CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RURAL DEVELOPMENT 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2U19 

(UNAUDITED) 

Item Yn. 1 
The District's customers' accounts receivable at June 30,2019, is comprised of the following: 

0-3Q days 31 + days Total 
No. Unknown 
Amount $105,088 $ 61,715 $166,803 

Item No. 2 
The District's water rates at June 30,2019, were as follows: 

Residential 
£ 2,000 gallons 
> 2,000 gallons 

$22.00 minimum 
$4,50 per thousand gallons 

Commercial 
£ 10,000 gallons 
> 10,000 gallons 

$60.00 minimum 
$4.50 per thousand gallons 

School 
£ 25,000 gallons 
> 25^000 gallons 

$56.25 minimum 
$3.50 per thousand gallons 

Item No. 3 
The number of active residential and non-residential users at June 30,2019, is unknown. 
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8s50 United Plaza Blvd , Ste lOoi - Baton Rouge, LA 70809 
225-922-4600 Phone - 225-922-4611 Fai< -

Postlethwaite & Nelterville ^ Ataoimiina 

rNDEPENDENT AUDTTORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FFNANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT A UDITJNG STANDARDS 

The Honorable President and Council 
of the Consolidated Waterworks District No. 13 of West Feliciana Parish 

St. Francisville, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the fmancial statements of the Consolidated 
Waterworks District No. 13 of West Feliciana Parish (the District), a component unit of West Feliciana 
Parish Government, as of June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 30, 2019-

l&temal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. 

A dejjciency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, materia] weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 
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p&N 
Postl€thwaite & NetterviUe 

Compliance and Otber Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts, However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Govemmenl Attditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perfonned in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's interna! control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
December 30, 2019 
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CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE, LOLISTANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

A. STMM/VRY OF AUDITORS^ RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified 

• Material wealaiess(es) identified? yes x no 
• Significant deficiencies identified that are 

not considered to be material weaknesses? yes x none reported 

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted? yes x no 
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CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FUANCLSVlLLEs LOt lSIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

B. Findings - Financial Statement Audit 

None. 

-43-



CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 13 
OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 

ST. FRANCISVILLE. LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

B. Fitidiags - Financial Statement Audit 

2018-001 Pledged Collateral for Deposits 

Criteria: According to Louisiana state law^ deposits over the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation's (FDIC) allowed limit must be secured by securities owned by the 
local bank and pledged to the local government as collateral. 

Condition: The District's deposits at the local bank exceeded the FDIC coverage limit 
combined with pledged securities and were under collateraHze by $20,536. 

Cause: Miscommunication between bank representatives and management resulted in 
the bank failing to properly classify the District's deposits as public; thus, the 
deposits were not secured by pledged securities as required by State law. 

Effect: The District's deposits were uncollateralized resulting in a violation of Louisiana 
law. 

Recommendation: Management should obtain written evidence of the local bank's compliance with 
deposit collateral requirements on a monthly basis. 

Vmv of Responsible Officiaf aful PhmfitJ ConecNve Action: 

Management relied on hank personnel to adequately collateralize the 
deposits. Procedures will be established to implement the recommendation of 
obtaining documentation monthly to ensure bank compliance in the _futwe. The 
bank has submitted a letter to us stating they will continue to monitor the account 
to avoid a repeat of said finding. 

Current Status: ResoJved. 
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A PioftisSK^nal Accaimting Corpofation 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Honorable President and Council of the 
Consolidated Waterworks District No.l3 of 
West Feliciana Parish and the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated in Schedule A, which were agreed to by the Consolidated 
Waterworks District No. 13 of West Feliciana Parish (the Entity) and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 
(LLA) (specified users) on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified in the LLA's Statewide 
AgreedrUpon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period July 1, 2018 tlirough June 30,2019. The Entity's 
management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of 
Government Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the 
specified users of this report- Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the 
procedures described in the attached Schedule A either for the purpose for which this report has been 
requested or for any other purpose. 

The procedures we performed and tlie associated findings are summarized in the attached Schedule A, 
which is an integral part of this report. 

We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be the 
expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, 
other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

i'he purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified 
in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this 
report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
December 30,2019 
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CONSOLroATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 13 OF WEST FELICIANA PARISH 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES PERFORMED AND ASSOCIATED FINDINGS 

JUNE 30,2019 
Schedule A 

The procedures performed and the results thereof are set forth below. The procedure is stated first, followed 
by the results ofthe procedure presented in italics. If the item being subjected to the procedures is positively 
Identified or present, then the results will read "no exception noted". If not, then a description of the 
exception ensues. Additionally, certain procedures listed below may not have been performed in accordance 
with guidance provided by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, the specified user ofthe report. For those 
procedures, "procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior 
year or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity" is indicated. 

Written Poiicies and Procedures 

I. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe that they address each of 
the following categories and subcategories (if applicable to public funds and the entity's operations): 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

The policy lacks requirements for preparing and monitoring the budget. 

b) Purchasing, including (I) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the public bid law; and (5) documentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Receipts, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and procedures 
should include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections for each type 
of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g. periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation 
to utility billing after cutofT procedureSi reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency 
fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 

No exceptions noted. 

e) Payroil/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked. 

No exceptions noted. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

The policy lacks requirements for types of services requiring written contracts, standard terms and 
conditions, legal review, approval process, and monitoring process. 
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g) Credit Ciirdu (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if iipplicable)^ including (1) how cards are lo 
be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers 
of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of fuel card 
purchases) 

No exceptions noted. 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement^ including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers 

The Entity has no written policy related to travel and expense reimbursements. 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-1121, (2) 
actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, 
and (4) requirement that all employees, including elected officials, annually attest through signature 
verification that they have read the entity's ethics policy, 

The Entity has no written policy for ethics. 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

The Entity has no written policy for debt service. 

k) Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) identification of critical data and 
frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location isolated 
from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and 
software patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed 
to recover operations after a critical event. 

The Entity has no written policy for disaster recovery/business continuity. 

Board or Finance Committee 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/fmance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and; 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency 
in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent document. 

For purposes ofthis procedure, the board met monthly as noted in the board's enabling legislation. 
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b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe that the minutes 
referenced or included monthly budget-lo-actual comparisons on the general fund and major special 
revenue funds, as well as monthly financial statements (or budget-to-actual comparisons, if 
budgeted) for major proprietary funds. Alternately, for those entities reporting on the non-profit 
accounting model, observe that the minutes referenced or included financial activity relating to 
public funds if those public funds comprised more than 10% of the entity's collections during the 
fiscal period. 

The minutes do not show budget to actual comparisons in the board minutes occurred during the 
year. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned fund 
balance in the general fund, if the general fund had a negative ending unassigned fund balance in 
the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period 
referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund balance in the 
general fund. 

No exceptions noted. 

Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of client bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and managements 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identi:fy the entity's main operating 
account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all 
accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for selected each account, and observe that: 

A listing of bank accounts was provided and included a total of J bank account. Management 
identified the etitity's main operating account. No exceptions were noted as a result of performing 
this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we selected the J bank account (I main operating) and obtained the 
bank reconciliations for the month ending December 2018, resulting in I bank reconciliations 
obtained and subjected to the below procedures. 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared ivithin 2 months of the related 
statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

Of the 1 bank reconciliation obtained, the reconciliation was not prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing date. 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who does not 
handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., initialed and 
dated, electronically logged); and 

Cf the 1 bank reconciliations obtained, the reconciliation did not have a reviewers' initials or any 
other documentation evidencing the review. 
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e) Manugemenl haa doeumentati.oii reflecting that it has researched recoiicilirig items thai have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

Of the I bank accotmt selected, the bonk reconciliation had reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months. There was no documentation evidencing that these 
reconciling items were researchedfor proper disposition. 

Collections 

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash) 
are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit 
sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

A listing of deposit sites provided and included I deposit site. No exceptions were noted as a result 
of performing this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we selected the 1 deposit site and performed the procedures below. 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locaiioiis and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e. 5 
collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) 
at each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection 
location such that: 

A listing of collection location for each deposit site selected in procedure #4 was provided and included 
a total of 1 collection location. No exceptions were noted as a result of performing this procedure. 

From each of the listings provided, we randomly selected the collection location for each deposit site. 
Review of the Entity's written policies and procedures or inquiry with emphyeefs) regardingjob duties 
was performed in order to perform the procedures below. 

a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

For the one location subjected to (he procedures, there are cash registers/drawers procedures that 
are in place but don V specijy if they are shared drawers in the procedures. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making bank 
deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation 
(e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

No exception noted. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to 
the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsible for 
reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

No exception noted. 
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d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash col lections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary 
ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions are not responsible for collecting cash, 
unless another employee verifies the reconciliation. 

No exception noted. 

6. Inquire of management that all employees who have access to cash are covered by a bond or insurance 
policy for theft. 

The Entity stated that all employees ha^e access to cash are bonded and/or covered tmder the 
Entity's insurance policy. 

7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 under 
"Bank Reconciliations" above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made 
on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same 
day). Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other than bank statements when 
selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book, 
etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

We randomly selected two deposit dates for the 1 bank account selected in procedure We obtained 
supporting documentation for each of the 2 deposits cmd performed the procedtires below. 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location 
(within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit 
is less than SI00). 

No exceptions noted. 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

No exceptions noted. 
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Non-payroli Dishursemenfs (excluding card purchases/payments, travel reimbursements^ and petty cash 
purchases) 

S. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the ^scai period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

The listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period "was provided No exceptions were 
noted as a result of performing this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we selected the I location and performed tf^ procedures below. 

9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved witii non-
payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee 
job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees about their job 
duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that; 

The listing of employees involvedwith non-payroll purchasing andpaymentfunctions for each payment 
processing location selected in procedure #5 was provided. No exceptions were noted as a result of 
performing this procedure. 

Review of the Entity's writ/en policies and procedures or inquiry with employeefs) regarding job duties 
was performed in order to perform the procedures below. 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and 
placing an order/making the purchase. 

For the 1 location selected for our procedures, a single employee has access to both process and 
approve pc^ments to vendors as well as edit/add vendors. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor 
files, unless anotlier employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 

For the 1 location selectedfor our procedures, the person processing payments was not prohibited 
from adding / modifying vendor files. The same employee is responsible for periodic review of 
vendor files. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

No exceptions noted. 
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10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain Ihe entity's non-payroll disbursement transaction 
population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's representation that 
the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location^ obtain supporting 
documentation for each transaction and; 

J listing of non-payroll disbursements for the payment processing location selected in procedures #5 
>V£7J provided related to the reporting period. No exceptions were noted as a result of performing this 
procedure. 

From each of the listings provided, we randomly selected 5 disbursements and performed the 
procedures below. 

a) Observe that the disbursement matched the related original invoice/billing statement. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

For 5 of the 5 disbursements selected for our procedures, it could not be determined if a single 
person initiated and approved the transaction. 

For 2 off the 5 disbursements selected for our procedures, a single employee processed and 
approved ihe purchase. 

For 5 of the 5 disbursements selected for our procedures, the payment processor was not prevented 
from adding/modifying vendor file.s. 

Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

11. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, hiel cards, and P-cards 
(cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained 
possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 

A listing of cards was provided. No exceptions were noted as a result ofperforming this procedure. 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) thai were 
used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each 
card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, 
and: 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 cards used In the fiscal period. We randomly selected 
one monthly statement for each of the 5 cards selected and performed the procedures noted below. 
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a) Observe that there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and supporting 
documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports for 
excessive fuel card usage) was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the 
authorized card holder. [Note: Requiring such approval may constrain the legal authority of certain 
public officials (e.g., mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality); these instances should not be 
reported.)] 

No exceptions noted 

b) Observe that finance charges and [ate fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

No exceptions noted. 

13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding fuel cards. 
randomly select 10 transactions (or ail transactions ifless than 10) from each statement, and obtain 
supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e. each card should have 10 transactions subject to 
testing). For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that 
identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public purpose, and 
(3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). 

We randomly selected 6 transactions from the 3 cards with activity selected in procedure #/i and 
performed the specified procedures. There were 2 of 6 transactions for which there was not written 
documentation of the business purpose. 

Travel and Travet-Relaied Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

14. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and traveNrelated expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly 
select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of 
the 5 reimbursements selected: 

There was no travel-related expense during the current period. 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, agree the reimbursement rate to those rates established either by 
the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration (www.gsa.govl. 

There was no travel-related expense during the current period. 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
Itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

There no travel-related expense dttring the current period. 

c) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose 
(for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals 
participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure #1 h). 
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There was no iravel-related expense during the current period. 

d) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, In writing, by someone other than 
the person receiving reimbursement. 

There was no travel-related expense during the current period. 

Contracts 

15. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and 
supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. 
Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. 
Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or ail 
contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and: 

Procedure wns not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 

a) Observe that the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., solicited 
quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring far this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 

b) Observe that the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy or law 
(e g. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurringfor this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g. change order), observe that the original contract terms pro vided 
for such an amendment. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurringfor this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 

d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice and related 
payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurringfor this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 
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Payroll and Personnel 

16. Obtain a listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees/officialSi obtain related paid 
salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel 
files. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 

17. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period, For the 5 employees/officials selected under 
#16 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and: 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 

a) Observe that all selected employees/officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, compensatory), (Note: Generally, an elected official is not eligible to earn leave and 
does not document his/her attendance and leave. However, if the elected official is earning leave 
according to policy and/or contract, the official should document his/her daily attendance and 
leave.). 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 

b) Observe that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees/officials. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 

c) Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in die entity's cumulative 
leave records. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 

18. Obtain a listing of those employees/officials tlial received termination payments during the fiscal period 
and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees/ofRcials, 
obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's termination payment 
calculations, agree the hours to the employee/officials' cumulate leave records, and agree the pay rates 
to the employee/officials' authorized pay rates in the employee/officials' personnel files.: 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 
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19. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, retirement 
contributions, health insurance premiums, and workers^ compensation premiums have been paid, and 
associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 

Ethics 

20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under "Payroll and Personnel" 
above obtain ethics documentation from management, and; 

a) Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour of ethics 
training during the fiscal period. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 

b) Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official attested through signature 
verification that he or she has read the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurrmgfor this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 

Debt Service 

21. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes issued during the fiscal period and management's representation that 
the listing is complete. Select all bonds/notes on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and 
observe that State Bond Commission approval was obtained for each bond/note issued. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 

22. Obtain a listing of bondsVnotes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, 
obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve 
balances and payments to those required by debt covenants. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 
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Other 

23. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscai period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listings 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the 
legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled. 

Procedure not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 

24. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity. 

Corrective Action 

25. Obtain management's response and corrective action plan for any exceptions noted in the above agreed-
upon procedures. 

See attached Corrective Action Plan. 
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CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN FOR THE STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON 
PROCEDURES 

DECEMBER 30,2019 

Consolidated Water Works District No. 13 of West Feliciana Parish respectfully 
subrnits the following corrective action plan for the year ended June 30, 2019, 

Written Policies and Procedures 
la. Consolidated Water Works District No. 13 will develop written policies for 
preparing and monitoring the budget. 

If, Consolidated Water Works District No, 13 will develop written policies for 
contracting which will include the types of services that require written contracts, 
standard terms and conditions, legal review of contracts, approval process, and the 
monitoring of alt contracts, 

II. Consolidated Water Works District No. 13 will develop written poilcies for 
ethics which Include the prohibitions as defined in LA R.S, 42:1111-1121, actions 
to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, a system to monitor possible ethics 
violations, and a requirement that all employees, including elected officials and 
board/commission members, annually attest through signature verifFcation that 
they have read the ethics policy. 

Ij. Consolidated Waterworks District No. 13 will develop written policies for debt 
service which includes debt issuance approval, continuing disdosure/EMMA 
reporting requirements, debt reserve requirements, and debt service requirements. 

Ik- Consolidated Water Works District No. 13 will develop written policies for 
disaster recovery and business continuity. 

Board or Finance Committee 
2b. Consolidated Water Works District No. 13 will ensure budget to actual 
comparisons are provided to the Council and consideration regards the comparison 
is clearly documented In the meeting minutes. 

Bank .RecondLlatlpris 
3a/3b/3c. Consolidated Water Works District No. 13 will ensure bank 
reconciliation are prepared In a timely manner. Additionally documentation of the 
review of bank recondliations will be documented and research of long-
outstanding items documented. 

Collections 
5a. Consolidated Water Works District No. 13 will develop procedures to avoid 
the sharing of cash drawers where possible. 
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